
 

 

 
 

 

 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA PACKAGE 

 

Tuesday, January 17, 2017 



 
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – JANUARY 17, 2017 - 1:00 P.M. 

 

 
 

Trustees: Ernest Carrera - Chairman;  Stephen Hill – Vice Chairman;  Alan Weiner - Trustee;  
Derwin Bright - Trustee;  Karl Craig - Trustee;  Steve Kenny - Trustee;  Sonya Little - 
Trustee 

 

Supporting Staff: Natasha Wiederholt, Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  Justin 
Vaske - Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney;  Terrie Williams - Accounting 
Operations Manager;  Rosie Rivera - Pension Relationship Accountant 

 

Consultants:  Jason Pulos and Nathan Burk- Asset Consulting Group;  Stephen Lambert Oswald 
and Bruce Crosswhite - AON/Hewitt 

 
Location and Time: City Council Chambers, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy Blvd., Tampa, Florida 33602,  
 January 17, 2017, 1:00 p.m. 
 

Any person who decides to appeal any decision of the Board of Trustees with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will 
need a record of the proceedings, and for such purpose, may need to hire a court reporter to ensure that a verbatim record of the 
proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.  In accordance with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and Section 286.26, Florida Statutes, persons with disabilities needing special 
accommodations to participate in this meeting should contact the General Employees’ Retirement Fund at least 48 hours prior to 
the date of the meeting. 

 

Page Numbers 
I. Roll Call 

 
II. Public Comments -  Ten (10) Minutes Total – Three (3) Minutes per Speaker 

 
III. Recognition of Julio Muniz’s Leadership and Service as Board Trustee 

 
IV. Approval of Minutes 

1) Minutes for Regular Board Meeting on December 20, 2016 (Motion) ................................ 3 -7 
 

V. Staff Report 
1) Portfolio Performance Review – December 2016  .............................................................. 8 -12 
2) January 2017 Liquidity Needs (Motion) .......................................................................... 13 – 14 
3) Fidelity Real Estate Growth Fund III Distribution .................................................................... 15 
4) Overview of DROP Rate of Return Calculation for FY 2016 – Option #1 ...................... Handout 
5) SSGA Trust Company Notification Letter and Consent Form (Motion) ........................... 16 - 20 
6) Pension Administration System Project Update ........................................................ Discussion 
7) Member Handbook Project Update ........................................................................... Discussion 
8) 2017 Annual Member Statement Project Update ..................................................... Discussion 
9) Ethics Training ............................................................................................................... Handout 

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 1 of 38



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
TUESDAY – JANUARY 17, 2017  

 

 
 

Page Numbers 
 

VI. Consent Agenda (Motion) 
 

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  
Longevity Retirements, DROP Entrants, DROP to Longevity, Deferred Retirements, Survivor 
Benefits, Estate Payments……….. ................................................................................................... 21  
 
Monthly Invoices: 
 

1) City of Tampa Reimbursement – October & November 2016 - $45,754.60 ........................... 22  
 

Quarterly Invoices: 
 

1) Asset Consulting Group - #7681 - $31,250.00 ......................................................................... 23 
2) LMCG – Q4 2016 - $34,359.20 ................................................................................................ 24 
 
Auto-Deducted: 
 

1) Long Wharf – Fidelity Real Estate Growth Fund III, L.P. – Q4 2016 - $3,214.56 ..................... 25 
2) Marathon-London Int’l Fund – October 2016 - $17,304.00 .................................................... 26 
 
Miscellaneous Invoices: 

 

1) Ford & Harrison - #679029 - $1,076.50 ................................................................................... 27 
2) Ford & Harrison - #679030 - $911.50 ...................................................................................... 28 
3) Ford & Harrison - #679031 - $1,067.50 ................................................................................... 29 
4) Ford & Harrison - #679032 - $1,230.50 ................................................................................... 30 
5) Ford & Harrison - #679033 - $885.25 ...................................................................................... 31 
6) Ford & Harrison - #679034 - $1,101.50 ................................................................................... 32 
7) Ford & Harrison - #679035 - $125.00 ...................................................................................... 33 
8) Ford & Harrison - #679036 - $260.00 ...................................................................................... 34 
9) Ford & Harrison - #679037 - $947.00 ...................................................................................... 35 
10) Ford & Harrison - #679038 - $223.00 ...................................................................................... 36 
11) Ford & Harrison - #679039 - $724.00 ...................................................................................... 37 
12) Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP - #000614799 - $2,458.50 .................................................. 38 

 
VII. Adjournment 

 

Upcoming Meeting Schedule – City Council Chambers: 
Tuesday, February 21, 2017 – 1:00 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

 
Upcoming Topics for Regular February Board Meeting 

Disability Retirement Hearing 
Forfeiture Hearing Updates 

Monthly Investment Performance Report 
Quarterly Investment Performance Report 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 2 of 38



   
 

GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – DECEMBER 20, 2016 - 1:00 P.M. 
 

 
 

 

The Board of Trustees for the General Employees’ Retirement Fund convened in a regular session at 1:00 
p.m. on this 20th day of December, 2016 in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, 3rd Floor, 315 E. Kennedy 
Blvd., Tampa, FL 33602. 
 

Support Staff:  Natasha Wiederholt, Pension Plan Supervisor and Recording Secretary;  Justin Vaske, 
Assistant City Attorney and Board Attorney;  Terrie Williams, Accounting Operations Manager and 
Karencia Ciagala, Office Support Specialist III. 
 

Consultants to Board: Jason Pulos and Nathan Burk - Asset Consulting Group; Stephen Lambert-Oswald 
and Bruce Crosswhite – Aon/Hewitt 
 

I. ROLL CALL 

Mr. Carrera, Chairman, presiding, brought the meeting to order at 1:00 p.m.   
 

Board Members Present Included:  Ernest Carrera, Chairman;  Sonya Little, Trustee;  Steve Kenny, 
Trustee;  Alan Weiner, Trustee; and Stephen Hill, Trustee.  Board members absent include:  Karl Craig, 
Trustee and Derwin Bright, Trustee.   
 

II. PUBLIC COMMENTS- Ten (10) Minutes Total – Three (3) Minutes per Speaker 

None. 
 

III. ANNUAL ELECTION 

1) 2017 Annual Election – Chairman  

MOTION: (Kenny/Hill) Motion was made by Steve Kenny to re-elect current chairman, Ernest Carrera. 
Motion was seconded by Stephen Hill.  MOTION CARRIED.   

2) 2017 Annual Election – Vice Chairman  

MOTION: (Weiner/Kenny) Motion was made by Alan Weiner to elect Stephen Hill to be Vice Chairman. 
Motion was seconded by Steve Kenny.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 

IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Ms. Wiederholt requested the Board approve the minutes from the November 15, 2016 meeting.    
 

MOTION: (Hill/Little) Motion was made by Stephen Hill to approve the minutes for the November 15th, 
2016 Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Sonya Little.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

V. DISABILITY RETIREMENT HEARING   

 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 3 of 38



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – DECEMBER 20, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 
 

1) Mary Hastings 
 
Ms. Wiederholt briefed the Board on the comprehensive medical evaluation report received from 
the Board’s independent medical examiners. 
 

Dr. Robin Hughes’ comprehensive evaluation/medical report dated 12/13/2016, stated in relevant 
part, “Based upon review of Ms. Hasting’s multiple medical records from Florida Cancer and Moffitt 
Cancer Center, it is my opinion that Ms. Hastings is incapable of usefully and efficiently performing 
any job within the City of Tampa.  Furthermore her condition is permanent and progressive in 
nature.  My opinion is based upon AMA Guides to Evaluation for Workability and Return to Work 2nd 
Edition.”    

 

On 12/19/2016 Dr. Robin Hughes submitted an addendum to the medical report of Ms. Hastings 
submitted 12/13/2016 which stated, “This disability review of the above named employee did not 
require the two medical records review and physical examinations as per Board policy. It was my 
determination that the medical records provided to me were sufficient enough and well 
documented with medical certainty that Ms. Hastings has a terminal illness with a grave prognosis 
and complications. This diagnosis does not require a face to face evaluation and therefore could be 
expedited.”  
 

Ms. Wiederholt made a staff recommendation for the Board to approve the disability retirement 
application for Mary Hastings. 
 
MOTION: (Kenny/Weiner) Motion was made by Steve Kenny to approve the disability retirement 
application for Mary Hastings.  Motion was seconded by Alan Weiner.  MOTION CARRIED. 

 
 

VI. STAFF REPORT  
 

1) Portfolio Performance Review – November 2016 

 

During the month of November the total portfolio was up 1% above the policy index of 0.6%.  
Calendar year to date the portfolio generated a positive 5.4% return versus a 5.8% return for the 
policy index.  The total portfolio generated an 8.8 % annualized return over the trailing five year 
period ahead of the policy index of 8.4% over the same time. 

 
Year-to-date, U.S. Large Cap Equity has generated a 10.9% return compared to the index of 10%.  
U.S. Small Cap Equity is up 16%, slightly underperforming the index at 18%.  Non U.S. Equity 
generated a -0.54% return compared to the policy index of 0.7%.  Fixed Income generated a 2.95% 
return compared to the index of 2.5%.  Real Assets is up 3.5%, slightly underperforming the index at 
4%.  

 
2) December Liquidity Needs  

 
Ms. Wiederholt directed the Board to page 15 of the Board Agenda Packages and reviewed the Cash 
Flow Projection for the month of December.  She advised the Board that we need to liquidate $4.6 
million dollars to fund benefit payments.  Asset Consulting Group prepared a rebalancing analysis on 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 4 of 38



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – DECEMBER 20, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 
 

page 16.  It’s their recommendation that we liquidate $4.6 million from the Dodge & Cox Large Cap 
Equity portfolio as we are currently overweight to the target allocation.  

 
MOTION: (Hill/Kenny) Motion was made by Stephen Hill to approve the liquidation of $4.6 million 
from Dodge & Cox to fund December benefit payments. The motion was seconded by Steve Kenny. 
MOTION CARRIED. 
 
Alan Weiner asked how the rebalancing fits into the portfolio allocation. Mr. Carrera directed him to 
the rebalancing analysis on page 16. The market value of the Dodge & Cox portfolio is $97.7 million 
and it represents 14.7% of the total portfolio. The target allocation is $83 million or 12.5% of the 
total portfolio.  Its value is currently $14.6 million overweight to target.  

 
3) DROP Rate of Return for the Fiscal Year Ending Sept. 30, 2016 – Option #1 

 
Ms. Wiederholt updated the Board that the fund’s net investment return, actual rate of return for 
the period of October 1, 2015 – September 30, 2016 for DROP Option 1 is +9.35%. 
 
MOTION: (Kenny/Hill) Motion was made by Steve Kenny to approve the DROP rate of return. 
Stephen Hill seconded the motion to the DROP Option #1 rate of return. MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Weiner asked how the 9.35% DROP rate of return ties to the performance numbers provided by 
ACG. Ms. Wiederholt advised him that the numbers would not tie as the ACG performance reports 
in the Board Agenda Package are as of November 30, 2016, whereas the investment calculation for 
the DROP rate of return is for the period ending September 30, 2016.  Mr. Weiner then asked if 
these numbers have been vetted by ACG. Ms. Wiederholt stated that both she and Chief 
Accountant, Lee Huffstutler have reviewed the calculation along with ACG.  All have found the 
calculation to be accurate.  Mr. Weiner requested that an overview of the DROP Option #1 rate of 
return calculation be provided at the next Board meeting.  Ms. Wiederholt advised she would add 
this item to the January 2017 Board meeting agenda. 

 
4) DROP Rate of Return for the Fiscal Year Ending Sept. 30, 2016 – Option #2 

 
Ms. Wiederholt updated the Board that the JP Morgan U.S. Government Money Market Fund, 
Actual 2a-7 rate of return for the period of October 1, 2015 – September 30, 2016 for DROP Option 
#2 is +0.12%. 
 
MOTION: (Hill/Weiner) Motion was made by Stephen Hill to approve the JP Morgan U.S. 
Government Money Market Fund rate of return. Alan Weiner seconded the motion. MOTION 
CARRIED  

 
5) Northern Trust Government Short-Term Investment Fund – Daily Rate of Return – Dec. 1, 2016 

 
Ms. Wiederholt updated the Board that Northern Trust Funds – Daily Rate U.S. Government Short-
Term Investment Fund Annualized Rate of Return as of December 1, 2016 is +0.08%. 
 
MOTION (Weiner/Kenny) Motion was made by Alan Weiner to approve the annualized rate of 
Return.  Steve Kenny seconded the motion to the annualized rate of return. MOTION CARRIED 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 5 of 38



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – DECEMBER 20, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 
 

 
6) Long Wharf FREG Fund III Letter – Extension of Scheduled Dissolution Date  

 
Ms. Wiederholt stated that we received a letter from Long Wharf Real Estate Partners proposing an 
extension of the dissolution date to December 31,, 2017. The scheduled dissolution date was 
originally December 30, 2016.  They are requesting this action to provide them sufficient time to 
complete the sale of the remaining properties.  We are requesting approval on the proposed 
amendment to the funds LPA, listed on pages 25 – 27 of the Board Agenda Packages.  Ms. Wiederholt 
advised the Board that ACG is comfortable with the amendment and stated it’s fairly standard to 
allow the extension to avoid a force liquidation of remaining assets.   
 
MOTION (Hill/Kenny) Motion was made by Stephen Hill to approve the extension. The motion was 
seconded by Steve Kenny. MOTION CARRIED. 
 

7) Dodge & Cox – Guideline Breach – November 30, 2016 
8) Dodge & Cox – Guideline Breach – December 6, 2016 

 
Ms. Wiederholt advised the Board that items 7 and 8 on the Staff Report include two breaches of 
guidelines by Dodge & Cox.  They exceeded the 30% maximum sector allocation to financials due to 
market movement.  The portfolio was immediately brought in line the following business day after 
the breaches occurred. 

 
9) 2017 Board of Trustees Meeting Schedule  

Ms. Wiederholt directed the Board to page 30 of the Board Agenda Packages and reviewed the 2017 
Meeting Schedule.  

10) 2017 Board of Trustees Annual Planner – Meeting Agenda 
 

Ms. Wiederholt directed the Board to page 31 of the Board Agenda Packages and reviewed the 2017 
Board of Trustees Annual Planner – Meeting Agenda.   

VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Ms. Wiederholt advised that the Consent Agenda has been reviewed and the items listed are true, 
correct, and have been evaluated and audited for accuracy.   Justin Vaske has also reviewed the legal 
invoices.   

 

Retirement Benefits & Estate Payments:  
Longevity Retirements, DROP Entrants, DROP to Longevity, Deferred Retirements, Disability 
Retirement, Survivor Benefits, Estate Payments 
 

Monthly Invoices: 
1) City of Tampa Reimbursement – FY 2016 True Up - $11,513.93 

 

Annual Invoices: 
1) Aon Hewitt - #M10-063376 - $12,500.00 
 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 6 of 38



GENERAL EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT FUND 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES - REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

TUESDAY – DECEMBER 20, 2016 – 1:00 P.M. 
 

 

 
 

Auto-Deducted: 
1) Marathon-London Int’l fund – November 2016 - $18,686.00 

 

Miscellaneous Invoices: 
1) Department of Administrative Hearings - #004284A - $402.30 
2) Ford & Harrison - #674530 - $300.00 
3) Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP - #516093 - $70.00 
4) Shumaker, Loop & Kendrick, LLP - #000607526 - $70.00 
5) Tampa Occupational Health Services – Kelly Coleman - $75.00 
6) Tampa Occupational Health Services – Mary Hastings - $600.00 
7) Tampa Occupational Health Services – William Gonzalez - $1,200.00 
8) Workhealth Occupational Medicine Clinic - #32870 – William Gonzalez - $750.00 

 

MOTION: (Hill/Kenny) Motion was made by Stephen Hill to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion 
Seconded by Steve Kenny.  MOTION CARRIED. 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, Chairman Carrera adjourned the meeting. 

 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________  

BOARD CHAIRMAN - Ernest P. Carrera  
 
________________________________________  
GE PENSION PLAN SUPERVISOR – Natasha Wiederholt  
& RECORDING SECRETARY 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 7 of 38



 Preliminary

Asset Class

Market

Value

($000s)

Actual

Allocation

(%)

Target

Allocation

(%)

Over/

Under

(%)

Total Portfolio 663,278 100.00 100.00

Equity 416,925 62.86 60.00 2.86 55.00 65.00

     US Large Cap Equity 177,185 26.71 25.00 1.71 20.00 30.00

     US Small Cap Equity 76,901 11.59 10.00 1.59 7.00 13.00

     Int'l Developed Markets Equity 131,215 19.78 20.00 -0.22 17.00 23.00

     Emerging Markets Equity 31,623 4.77 5.00 -0.23 3.00 7.00

Fixed Income 184,504 27.82 30.00 -2.18 23.00 37.00

Real Assets 60,184 9.07 10.00 -0.93 7.00 13.00

     Core Real Estate 40,835 6.16 7.00 -0.84 5.00 12.00

     Opportunistic Real Estate 400 0.06 3.00 -2.94 1.00 5.00

     Global REITs 18,949 2.86 0.00 2.86 0.00 5.00

Cash and Equivalents 1,666 0.25 0.00 0.25

Market

Value

($000s)

Actual

Allocation

(%)

1

Month

(%)

FYTD

(%)

1

Year

(%)

3

Years

(%)

5

Years

(%)

10

Years

(%)

Since

Inception

(%)

Total Portfolio (07/85) 663,278 100.00 1.37 0.59 6.85 4.02 8.98 5.40 8.52

Policy Index 
1

1.65 0.37 7.52 4.55 8.66 5.13 --
1

City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund

For the Periods Ending December 31, 2016

Range

Min - Max

(%)

The Policy Index consists of 30% BloomBar US Aggregate, 20% MSCI EAFE, 25% Russell 1000, 10% Russell 2000, 5% MSCI Emerging Markets, 5% NFI ODCE net and 5% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed RE. Prior to June 2014, the Policy Index consisted of 30% 

BloomBar US Aggregate, 18% MSCI EAFE, 29% Russell 1000, 7% Russell 2000, 3% MSCI EAFE SMID NetDiv, 3% MSCI Emerging Markets, 5% NFI ODCE net and 5% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed RE.  Prior to August 2009, the Policy Index consisted of 30% 

BloomBar US Aggregate, 18% MSCI EAFE, 32% Russell 1000, 8% Russell 2000, 3.5% MSCI EAFE Small Cap, 3.5% MSCI Emerging Markets, and 5% NFI ODCE net. 

2
6

.7
1

%
 

1
1
.5

9
%

 1
9
.7

8
%

 

4
.7

7
%

 

2
7
.8

2
%

 

6
.1

6
%

 

0
.0

6
%

 

2
.8

6
%

 

0
.2

5
%

 

2
5
.0

0
%

 

1
0

.0
0

%
 

2
0
.0

0
%

 

5
.0

0
%

 

3
0
.0

0
%

 

7
.0

0
%

 

3
.0

0
%

 

0
.0

0
%

 

0
.0

0
%

 

0.00% 

10.00% 

20.00% 

30.00% 

40.00% 

US Large Cap Equity US Small Cap Equity Int'l Developed Markets 

Equity 

Emerging Markets Equity Fixed Income Core Real Estate Opportunistic Real Estate Global REITs Cash and Equivalents 

Actual vs. Target Allocation 

Actual Allocation Target Allocation 

 © 2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  1
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 8 of 38



 Preliminary

Market

Value

($000s)

Actual

Allocation

(%)

1

Month

(%)

FYTD

(%)

1

Year

(%)

3

Years

(%)

5

Years

(%)

10

Years

(%)

Since

Inception

(%)

Total Portfolio (07/85) 663,278 100.00 1.37 0.59 6.85 4.02 8.98 5.40 8.52

Policy Index 
1

1.65 0.37 7.52 4.55 8.66 5.13 5.68

US Large Cap Equity (04/02) 177,185 26.71 0.78 4.83 11.75 8.50 15.79 7.79 7.93

Russell 1000 1.88 3.83 12.05 8.59 14.69 7.08 7.07

US Small Cap Equity (01/99) 76,901 11.59 2.37 9.28 18.71 6.29 15.27 7.77 11.21

Russell 2000 2.80 8.83 21.31 6.74 14.46 7.07 8.14

Non US Equity  (03/03) 162,839 24.55 2.82 -1.83 2.27 -2.05 5.99 1.98 8.18

Non US Equity Index 
2

2.81 -1.35 3.57 -1.24 6.47 1.42 8.76

Fixed Income (10/84) 184,504 27.82 0.16 -3.92 3.11 2.16 2.21 4.40 6.68

BloomBar US Aggregate 0.14 -2.98 2.65 3.03 2.23 4.34 7.26

Real Assets (07/02) 60,184 9.07 1.80 -1.26 5.37 8.60 10.10 5.28 8.18

Real Assets Composite Index 
3

1.53 -2.67 5.61 8.79 10.78 4.23 --

Cash and Equivalents (06/93) 1,666 0.25 0.01 0.05 0.29 0.29 0.22 1.01 2.95

US T-Bills 90 Day 0.04 0.08 0.33 0.14 0.12 0.81 2.70
2

3

The Non US Equity Index consists of 80% MSCI EAFE and 20% MSCI Emerging Markets Index. Prior to June 2014, the Non U.S. Equity Policy Index consisted of 75% MSCI EAFE, 12.5% MSCI EAFE SMID NetDiv, and 12.5% MSCI Emerging Markets Index.

The Real Assets Composite Index consists of 50% NFI ODCE net and 50% FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed RE Index.

City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund

For the Periods Ending December 31, 2016

 © 2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  2
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 9 of 38



 Preliminary

Market

Value

($000s)

Actual

Allocation

(%)

1

Month

(%)

FYTD

(%)

1

Year

(%)

3

Years

(%)

5

Years

(%)

10

Years

(%)

Since

Inception

(%)

US Large Cap Equity (04/02) 177,185 26.71 0.78 4.83 11.75 8.50 15.79 7.79 7.93

Russell 1000 1.88 3.83 12.05 8.59 14.69 7.08 7.07

   Waddell & Reed Investment Management (12/04) 85,637 12.91 0.26 -1.23 1.99 7.39 13.93 8.92 9.17

Russell 1000 Growth 1.24 1.01 7.08 8.55 14.50 8.33 8.42

   Dodge & Cox Incorporated  (04/02) 91,548 13.80 1.25 10.67 21.56 9.08 17.25 6.39 8.56

Russell 1000 Value 2.50 6.68 17.34 8.59 14.80 5.72 7.25

US Small Cap Equity (01/99) 76,901 11.59 2.37 9.28 18.71 6.29 15.27 7.77 11.21

Russell 2000 2.80 8.83 21.31 6.74 14.46 7.07 8.14

   WTC SC 2000 (01/99) 40,756 6.14 1.99 8.33 20.55 9.33 17.68 10.48 11.64

Russell 2000 2.80 8.83 21.31 6.74 14.46 7.07 8.14

   ClariVest Asset Management (07/07) 16,797 2.53 3.08 7.51 13.04 6.81 16.41 -- 6.23

Russell 2000 Growth 1.36 3.57 11.32 5.05 13.74 7.76 7.17

   LMCG Small Cap Value (07/16) 19,348 2.92 2.57 12.96 -- -- -- -- 18.99

Russell 2000 Value 4.13 14.07 31.74 8.31 15.07 6.26 24.19

Non US Equity (03/03) 162,839 24.55 2.82 -1.83 2.27 -2.05 5.99 1.98 8.18

Non US Equity Index 
2

2.81 -1.35 3.57 -1.24 6.47 1.42 8.76

Int'l Developed Markets Equity

   Marathon-London International Fund (08/15) 65,911 9.94 2.94 -1.18 -1.16 -- -- -- -3.74

MSCI EAFE NetDiv 3.42 -0.71 1.00 -1.60 6.53 0.75 -4.99

MSCI EAFE Value 4.60 4.22 5.68 -1.62 6.87 0.35 -4.13

   Fisher Investments (07/03) 65,304 9.85 3.50 -0.44 1.93 -1.10 7.39 2.73 7.71

MSCI EAFE 3.44 -0.68 1.51 -1.15 7.02 1.22 7.01

MSCI EAFE Growth 2.23 -5.50 -2.66 -0.82 7.06 2.01 6.85

Emerging Markets Equity

   Aberdeen Asset Management (06/08) 31,623 4.77 1.20 -5.22 13.25 -0.87 2.99 -- 3.75

MSCI Emerging Markets 0.29 -4.08 11.60 -2.19 1.64 2.17 -1.17

City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund

For the Periods Ending December 31, 2016

 © 2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  3
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 10 of 38



 Preliminary

Market

Value

($000s)

Actual

Allocation

(%)

1

Month

(%)

FYTD

(%)

1

Year

(%)

3

Years

(%)

5

Years

(%)

10

Years

(%)

Since

Inception

(%)

Fixed Income (10/84) 184,504 27.82 0.16 -3.92 3.11 2.16 2.21 4.40 6.68

Barclays US Aggregate 0.14 -2.98 2.65 3.03 2.23 4.34 7.26

   Taplin, Canida & Habacht (03/97) 67,939 10.24 0.24 -2.57 4.10 3.22 2.95 4.76 5.71

BloomBar US Aggregate 0.14 -2.98 2.65 3.03 2.23 4.34 5.30

   State Street Global Advisors (06/03) 58,968 8.89 0.14 -2.97 2.67 3.05 2.27 4.46 4.09

BloomBar US Aggregate 0.14 -2.98 2.65 3.03 2.23 4.34 4.01

   Brandywine (02/12) 57,598 8.68 0.07 -6.41 2.39 0.23 -- -- 1.08

Citigroup World Govt Bond -0.67 -8.53 1.60 -0.84 -0.99 2.99 -1.30

Real Assets (07/02) 60,184 9.07 1.80 -1.26 5.37 8.60 10.10 5.28 8.18

Real Assets Composite Index 
3

1.53 -2.67 5.61 8.79 10.78 4.23 --

Core Real Estate

   UBS Global Asset Management (09/00) 40,835 6.16 1.19 1.19 6.91 10.48 10.40 5.92 8.54

NFI ODCE Net 0.00 0.00 5.80 10.35 10.74 4.65 7.16

Opportunistic Real Estate

   Private Real Estate (06/04) 400 0.06 -3.93 -3.63 -0.12 19.72 16.93 -0.63 2.14

Global REITs

   CBRE Clarion (07/09) 18,949 2.86 3.30 -6.13 1.46 5.06 8.93 -- 11.48

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Dev RE 3.05 -5.39 4.99 6.78 10.33 2.23 12.51

Cash and Equivalents (06/93) 1,666 0.25 0.01 0.05 0.29 0.29 0.22 1.01 2.95

Private Real Estate Residual Cash 183 0.03 -- -- -- -- -- -- --
Dates reflect the first full month of performance.

FYTD: Fiscal year ending September.

City of Tampa General Employees' Retirement Fund

For the Periods Ending December 31, 2016

 © 2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  4
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 11 of 38



1

Month

(%)

FYTD

(%)

1

Year

(%)

3

Years

(%)

5

Years

(%)

10

Years

(%)

Equity Markets - Core

S&P 500 1.98 3.82 11.96 8.87 14.66 6.95

Russell 1000 1.88 3.83 12.05 8.59 14.69 7.08

Russell 2000 2.80 8.83 21.31 6.74 14.46 7.07

Russell 2500 1.94 6.12 17.59 6.93 14.54 7.69

Russell Mid Cap 1.14 3.21 13.80 7.92 14.72 7.86

Equity Markets - Growth

S&P 500 Growth 1.42 0.48 6.89 9.03 14.54 8.29

Russell 1000 Growth 1.24 1.01 7.08 8.55 14.50 8.33

Russell 2000 Growth 1.36 3.57 11.32 5.05 13.74 7.76

Russell 2500 Growth 0.89 2.60 9.73 5.45 13.88 8.24

Russell Mid Cap Growth 0.35 0.46 7.33 6.23 13.51 7.83

NASDAQ Comp 1.12 1.34 7.50 8.83 15.62 8.34

Equity Markets - Value

S&P 500 Value 2.54 7.35 17.40 8.51 14.69 5.50

Russell 1000 Value 2.50 6.68 17.34 8.59 14.80 5.72

Russell 2000 Value 4.13 14.07 31.74 8.31 15.07 6.26

Russell 2500 Value 2.85 9.34 25.20 8.22 15.04 6.94

Russell Mid Cap Value 1.78 5.52 20.00 9.45 15.70 7.59

International Markets

MSCI EAFE NetDiv 3.42 -0.71 1.00 -1.60 6.53 0.75

MSCI World ex US 3.29 -0.31 3.29 -1.11 6.59 1.36

MSCI World 2.43 1.97 8.15 4.38 11.04 4.41

Fixed Income

BofA ML 1 Yr Treasury Note 0.06 0.05 0.75 0.36 0.32 1.43

BofA ML High Yield Master II 1.97 1.88 17.49 4.72 7.35 7.34

BloomBar Intermediate Agg 0.04 -2.05 1.97 2.43 1.95 4.00

BloomBar US Aggregate 0.14 -2.98 2.65 3.03 2.23 4.34

BloomBar Intermediate G/C 0.07 -2.07 2.08 2.09 1.85 3.84

BloomBar US Credit 0.61 -2.97 5.63 4.07 3.85 5.31

Market Overview

For the Periods Ending December 31, 2016

 © 2017 Asset Consulting Group All Rights Reserved  5
Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 12 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 13 of 38



January 2017 Rebalancing Analysis will be distributed at the Board meeting.  

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 14 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 15 of 38



  

 

 

December 8, 2016 

  

Dear Valued Clients and Consultants, 

As you may be aware, under the obligations of the Dodd-Frank Act, 

State Street and ten other US and non-US banks designated as global 

systemically important financial institutions are required to maintain a 

robust recovery and resolution plan. 

As part of our planning efforts, State Street has determined that its 

asset management business, State Street Global Advisors (SSGA), 

should be conducted through dedicated and distinct legal entities. As a 

result, we have established SSGA Trust Company, a non-depository 

trust company into which SSGA’s US institutional investment 

management business will be transferred. This trust company is a 

wholly-owned subsidiary of State Street Bank and Trust Company 

(SSBT), the entity with which you are currently contracted. The 

establishment of this dedicated trust company will simplify the firm’s 

legal structure, satisfying certain requirements under Dodd-Frank and 

make our US institutional business more consistent with the rest of 

SSGA’s global operations and with other asset managers affiliated with 

large banks. 

In connection with this transition, we will be requesting your 

consent to assign your written contracts with SSBT to SSGA 

Trust Company. 

It is important to note that this initiative will not change the fact that 

we are affiliated with State Street. In addition, this will not impact 

our services, product offerings, teams, strategy, operations, 

processes, infrastructure, or any other aspect of our 

business. The new trust company will be supported by the same 

people, resources, systems and technology that exist today. We expect 

Barry F.X. Smith 
Senior Managing Director 
Head of SSGA Americas 
Institutional Client Group 
 
State Street Financial Center 
One Lincoln Street 
Boston, MA 02111  
USA  

 

ssga.com 

      

      

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 16 of 38



  

 

no disruption to any aspect of the services you currently receive from 

SSGA, and the restructuring will not impact our obligations to you. 

These changes solely relate to the legal structure of our firm and 

compliance with the Dodd-Frank Act. SSGA will continue to be your 

trusted investment management partner. Further, SSGA Trust 

Company will have an initial capitalization in excess of $550 million. 

While this is less than SSBT, we believe it is appropriate for the 

operations of SSGA Trust Company and is consistent with many other 

institutional asset management firms. 

Please click here to find a detailed Q&A, which provides additional 

information on this initiative. 

Our goal is to make the transition as seamless as possible for our 

clients. We are grateful for your involvement in this effort, and look 

forward to providing our full assistance and support in this process. 

Please do not hesitate to contact your Relationship Manager with any 

questions or email us at trustconsent@ssga.com. 

Sincerely, 

 

To unsubscribe from emails from State Street Global Advisors, please reply to this email. 

FOR INSTITUTIONAL USE ONLY, Not for Use with the Public. 

The whole or any part of this work may not be reproduced, copied or transmitted or any of 

its contents disclosed to third parties without SSGA’s express written consent. 

Canada: State Street Global Advisors, Ltd., 770 Sherbrooke Street West, Suite 1200 

Montreal, Quebec, H3A 1G1, T: +1 514 282 2400 and 30 Adelaide Street East Suite 500, 

Toronto, Ontario M5C 3G6. T: +1 647 775 5900. 

INST-7235 CANMKT-3301 Exp. Date: 12/31/2017 

© 2016 State Street Corporation—All rights reserved 

Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 17 of 38

http://ssgainstitutional.com/1450/files/State-Street-Global-Advisors-Trust-Company_FAQ.pdf
mailto:trustconsent@ssga.com
mailto:ssgainstitutional@ssga.com?subject=Unsubscribe%20from%20special%20communications%20from%20SSGA


Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 18 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 19 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 20 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 21 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 22 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 23 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 24 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 25 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 26 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 27 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 28 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 29 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 30 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 31 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 32 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 33 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 34 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 35 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 36 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 37 of 38



Board of Trustees Agenda Package - January 17, 2017 Page 38 of 38




